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Dear Petitioner: 

 

This is in reference to your application for correction of your naval record pursuant to Section 

1552 of Title 10, United States Code.  After careful and conscientious consideration of relevant 

portions of your naval record and your application, the Board for Correction of Naval Records 

(Board) found the evidence submitted insufficient to establish the existence of probable material 

error or injustice.  Consequently, your application has been denied. 

 

Although you did not file your application in a timely manner, the statute of limitation was 

waived in accordance with the 25 August 2017 guidance from the Office of the Under Secretary 

of Defense for Personnel and Readiness (Kurta Memo).  A three-member panel of the Board, 

sitting in executive session, considered your application on 21 February 2024.  The names and 

votes of the panel members will be furnished upon request.  Your allegations of error and 

injustice were reviewed in accordance with administrative regulations and procedures applicable 

to the proceedings of the Board.  Documentary material considered by the Board consisted of 

your application together with all material submitted in support thereof, relevant portions of your 

naval record,  applicable statutes, regulations, and policies, to include the Kurta Memo, the  

3 September 2014 guidance from the Secretary of Defense regarding discharge upgrade requests 

by Veterans claiming post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD)/mental health condition (MHC) 

(Hagel Memo), and the 25 July 2018 guidance from the Under Secretary of Defense for 

Personnel and Readiness regarding equity, injustice, or clemency determinations (Wilkie 

Memo).  In addition, the Board considered an advisory opinion (AO) from a qualified mental 

health professional and your response to the AO. 

 

You enlisted in the U.S. Navy and entered active duty on 12 October 2000.  On 26 June 2002, 

you received non-judicial punishment (NJP) for two specifications of unauthorized absence 

(UA).  You were subsequently issued a counseling warning that further deficiencies in your 

performance or conduct may result in disciplinary action and in processing for administrative 

separation.  On 9 August 2002, you received your second NJP for failure to go to your appointed 

place of duty on three occasions.  Then, on 15 January 2003, you received your third NJP for 

wrongful use of marijuana.  As a result, you were notified for separation and waived your rights.  



                

               Docket No. 7905-23 
 

 2 

Prior to the Commanding Officer (CO) making his recommendation, you began a period of UA 

on 17 January 2003.  The CO made his recommendation to the Separation Authority (SA) that 

you be discharged with an Other Than Honorable (OTH) characterization and be separated in 

absentia.  The SA accepted the recommendation and directed you be discharged for pattern of 

misconduct.  You were so discharged on 31 January 2003. 

 

Post-discharge, you applied to the Naval Discharge Review Board (NDRB) for a discharge 

upgrade.  The NDRB denied your request, on 8 June 2005, after determining your discharge was 

proper as issued. 

 

The Board carefully considered all potentially mitigating factors to determine whether the 

interests of justice warrant relief in your case in accordance with the Kurta, Hagel, and Wilkie 

Memos.  These included, but were not limited to, your desire for a discharge upgrade and 

contentions that you were very young, did not understand any of the protocols to get help, you 

would break down in emotional distress because at the time your mental health symptoms had 

progressed but you were ashamed and didn’t want others in your division to think you were weak, 

and you were diagnosed with bipolar disorder in 2018-2019.  For purposes of clemency and 

equity consideration, the Board noted you provided a personal statement but did not provide 

supporting documentation describing post-service accomplishments or advocacy letters.  

 

As part of the Board review process, the BCNR Physician Advisor who is a licensed clinical 

psychologist (Ph.D.), reviewed your contentions and the available records and issued an AO 

dated 19 January 2024.  The Ph.D. stated in pertinent part: 

 

There is no evidence that he was diagnosed with a mental health condition in 

military service, or that he exhibited any psychological symptoms or behavioral 

changes indicative of a diagnosable mental health condition.  He has received 

civilian treatment for mental health concerns that are temporally remote to his 

military service and appear unrelated.  Unfortunately, available records are not 

sufficiently detailed to establish clinical symptoms in service or provide a nexus 

with his misconduct.  Additional records (e.g., post-service mental health records 

describing the Petitioner’s diagnosis, symptoms, and their specific link to his 

misconduct) may aid in rendering an alternate opinion. 

 

The Ph.D. concluded, “it is my clinical opinion there is insufficient evidence of a mental health 

condition that may be attributed to military service.  There is insufficient evidence to attribute his 

misconduct to a mental health condition.”  After reviewing your response, the AO remained 

unchanged. 

 

After thorough review, the Board concluded these potentially mitigating factors were insufficient 

to warrant relief.  Specifically, the Board determined that your misconduct, as evidenced by your 

NJPs, outweighed these mitigating factors.  In making this finding, the Board considered the 

seriousness of your misconduct and the fact it included a drug offense.  The Board determined 

that illegal drug use by a service member is contrary to military core values and policy, renders 

such members unfit for duty, and poses an unnecessary risk to the safety of their fellow service 

members.  The Board noted that marijuana use in any form is still against Department of Defense 






